
 

 1 

 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING HAINES CITY, FLORIDA 

MINUTES 

 

November 4, 2024, 6:00 p.m. 

City Hall Commission Chambers 

620 E. Main Street, Haines City, FL 33844 

Phone: 863-421-9921     Web: hainescity.com 

 

Board Members in 

Attendance: 

Omar Arroyo 

 Morris West 

 Anne Huffman 

 Vernel Smith 

 Kim Downing 

 Albertine Richards 

 Iris Padilla 

  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Board Member Omar Arroyo called to order the Community Redevelopment Agency 

meeting on November 4, 2024 at 6:00 PM at 620 E Main St. Haines City, Florida.. 

2. INVOCATION 

Board Member Morris West gave the invocation. 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman Arroyo led the Pledge of Allegiance. 



 

 2 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4.a October 1, 2024 CRA Meeting Minutes 

5. OLD BUSINESS 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

6.a Business Redevelopment Incentive with Lien Amendment 

CRA Manager Jane Murphy presented this item 

Huffman asked isn't it too late to tell them about the lien once the project is 

complete.  

Huffman asked for clarification on the details of the lien assessment and what is 

the eligibility requirements for the grant is now. Discussion regarding the 

landlords being able to from raise the rent. Commissioner Huffman had concerns 

that the tenant will be affected by this rehab. Board Member West mentioned 

that the Bert Harris Property Rights Act states that we cannot dictate what the 

rent should be. More discussion took place.   

Huffman said but if we don't have tenants then the taxes stay the same. she said 

that the incentive is to bring more business to downtown but if the business rent 

is too expensive, they will leave.  

Board Member Smith asked if it is a reimbursement rather than a contribution and 

said it's a lien on a property that will be reimbursed to the City if the owner of the 

property sold the property within the first five years after the rehab is done. CRA 

Manager Murphy stated the lack of a downtown as well as a Mainstreet is part of 

the issues with revitalizing the downtown area. 

Board Member Arroyo said that basically the point is to raise the value as well as 

the tax base.   

Board Member Downing asked why we are paying the money to the owners and 

not the contractors and asked for clarification on the CAC board's approval power.  

The owner is paying the bill and then receipts will be provided for the CRA to 

reimburse the owner.  Discussion regarding the authority of the CAC board.  

Manager Murphy gave clarification that the final word comes from the CRA Board. 

Board Member Huffman stated that the CAC board is an advisory board to the CRA 

staff not to the CRA board. The CAC board would not make any recommendations 



 

 3 

to the Board. Board Member Huffman stated that Florida Statute 166 defines the 

role of the CAC board. 

City Attorney Reilly said that he there comes to a point that the CRA board should 

not get too involved in the regulatory rent. 

Board Member Huffman said people are leaving because the rent is too high. The 

business owners have to find a way to have the tenants stay within the downtown 

area. CRA Manager also stated that the focus needs to be creating additional 

parking so that there can be foot traffic. 

Board Member Arroyo asked if there has been any know cases  

Board Member West said tent and landlord is a contract issue and when it is over 

we have no control over it.  

Board Downing asked it will be one year to complete all phases. as well she would 

like to see more detail quotes. Receiving quotes with just a bottom-line number 

does not reflect the details of the job. 

Board Member Iris Padilla wanted clarification to make sure the CRA is reimbursed 

back the award if they sell the property prior to the 5 year.  CRA Manager gave 

clarification on how the breakdown of lien piece is applied to the owner. 

Board Member Arroyo opened the floor to public comments. No one came 

forward. Public hearing was closed 

Mayor closed the meeting and asked for a motion. 

Moved by Kim Downing 

Seconded by Anne Huffman 

Staff recommends approval of the structure rehabilitation grant program lien 

amendment.  

Carried 

 

6.b Structure Rehab Grant – Phase II – 413 N. 12th Street 

CRA Manager presented 

Board Member Huffman asked for clarification on why we are using calendar year 

if the CRA is fiscal year. CRA Manager stated that this could be changed if that was 

the desire of the board. 



 

 4 

Board Member Downing mentioned again about the need to have detailed 

quotes. 

Board Member West asked CRA manager if she receives detailed quotes. CRA 

Manager stated that we can request a more detailed proposal for the scope of 

work being done. 

Board Member Arroyo explained how contractors submit their quotes. Small 

projects usually present with a bottom-line number.  When the jobs are larger, 

the projects tend to give a little more detail. 

Huffman asked why these contractors are all from Kissimmee and not Haines City 

asked if she can be advertised so that Haines City contractors can be. she said that 

we need to reinvest in our own residents.  

Richard agrees about the detailed quotes and would like to see more Haines City 

contractors.  

West sometimes finding our own contractors is not feasible, but he agrees that 

we should have a Haines City recommendation vendor list.  

Arroyo said that is can be a double-edged sword because it the Haines City 

contractor does a bad job the blame could be pointed toward the city.  

Board member Richards asked if there is a list of Haines City contractors.  

Board member opened the floor to public comments. no one came forward. 

Public hearing was closed. 

Mayor closed the meeting and asked for a motion 

Moved by Anne Huffman 

Seconded by Morris West 

Staff recommends approval of grant request for Phase II in the amount of 

$17,750.00 for the property at 413 N. 12th Street. 

Carried 

 

6.c Request to enter into an Agreement with SEMCO Construction, Inc. for the 

Haines City Historical Museum Building Repairs 

Director Griffin presented this item.  



 

 5 

Board member West asked if this bid was a sole source bid.  Director Griffin stated 

that contract is a continuing agreement already in place with the City.  Board 

Member inquired as to why the rush.  Director Griffin stated due to the dedicated 

items to be stored it is in the best interest to have the repairs done. Huffman asked 

where the funding for this repair is coming from since the cost is $99, 622.72 

dollars. Director DeJesus explained where the funding was coming from along with 

the carryover from the previous fiscal year. Board Member West stated that due 

to time constraints the item should be discussed at another meeting.  Board 

member Downing stated that the meeting should start at 5:30 PM as there is 

always a rush to get through the agenda items. 

Board Member Huffman stated the Boys and Girls Club be changed back to the 

original color.  It is historic building, and the color scheme doesn't match.  

Director Griffin stated that he has received a directive to change the color back. 

At this time, CRA Manager thanked the CM for her time at the city and read her 

closing statement as this is her last meeting.   

Moved by Anne Huffman 

Seconded by Kim Downing 

Staff recommends approval of the request to enter into an agreement with 

SEMCO Construction, Inc. to perform the needed repairs at the Haines City 

Historical Museum. 

Carried 

 

7. CRA BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Huffman requested to change the Boys and Girls Club change the color to the original 

color 

Jane read her last statement to the board as this will be her last meeting.  

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

             None 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

Without any further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:13. 



 

 6 

 

 

   

Omar Arroyo, Mayor  Sharon Lauther, MMC, City Clerk 

   

   

Fred Reilly, City Attorney   

   

 


